
RESOURCES & INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE

REGULAR MEETING
Monday, June 12, 2023 - 2:00 PM

1000 Main Street Cambria, CA 93428

AGENDA
In person at:

Cambria Veterans’ Memorial Hall
1000 Main Street, Cambria, CA 93428

AND via Zoom at:
Please click the link below to join the webinar:

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/87606686384?
pwd=ajdUNXpkRnpRREVDOGhNNjZYbDV1dz09

Passcode: 624729
Or One tap mobile: 

US: +16694449171,,87606686384# or +16699006833,,87606686384# 
Or Telephone:

Dial (for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location):
US: +1 669 444 9171  or +1 669 900 6833  or +1 253 205 0468  or +1 253 215 8782  or +1 346
248 7799  or +1 719 359 4580  or +1 312 626 6799  or +1 360 209 5623  or +1 386 347 5053
 or +1 507 473 4847  or +1 564 217 2000  or +1 646 931 3860  or +1 689 278 1000  or +1 929

205 6099  or +1 301 715 8592  or +1 305 224 1968  or +1 309 205 3325 
Webinar ID: 876 0668 6384

International numbers available: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kei3KXOTCU

Copies of the staff reports or other documentation relating to each item of business referred to on the agenda are
on file in the CCSD Administration Office, available for public inspection during District business hours. The
agenda and agenda packets are also available on the CCSD website at https://www.cambriacsd.org/. In
compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting
or if you need the agenda or other documents in the agenda packet provided in an alternative format, contact the
Administrative Analyst at 805-927-6223 at least 48 hours before the meeting to ensure that reasonable
arrangements can be made. The Administrative Analyst will answer any questions regarding the agenda.

A. CALL TO ORDER

1

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/87606686384?pwd=ajdUNXpkRnpRREVDOGhNNjZYbDV1dz09
https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kei3KXOTCU
https://www.cambriacsd.org/


B. ESTABLISH QUORUM

C. CHAIRMAN'S REPORT

D. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMUNICATIONS

Any Committee Member may make an announcement, report briefly
on his or her activities, or ask a question for clarification.

E. DISTRICT ENGINEER REPORT

1. PUBLIC COMMENT

Members of the public may now address the Committee on any item of
interest within the jurisdiction of the Committee but not on its agenda
today. Future agenda items can be suggested at this time. In compliance
with the Brown Act, the Committee cannot discuss or act on items not on
the agenda. Each speaker has up to three minutes.

2. REGULAR BUSINESS

A. Discussion Regarding CCSD Standing Committee Bylaws
B. Receive Update on Annual Water Supply and Demand Assessment

3. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

4. ADJOURN

2



Board Approved on 5/11/2023 

Cambria Community Services District Standing Committee Bylaws 

1. SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY

1.1. Standing Committees are advisory to the Board of Directors. The committees shall gather 

information, explore alternatives, examine implications, and offer options for review and deliberation by the 

Board of Directors. Committee members are expected to stay current on the issues under discussion by 

the Board of Directors. 

1.2 Each Standing Committee shall consider only District-related issues approved and assigned to  it by the Board 

of Directors, or issues within the purview of each Committee as defined in “Standing Committee Statements of 

Purpose and Responsibilities” below. 

1.3 Apart from their normal function as part of an advisory resource, committees and the individual members 

have no authority and may not verbally or by action represent the committee or the CCSD in any policy, act or 

expenditure. 

1.4 The committee and its members shall maintain collaborative working relationships with the public, other 

Standing Committees and the CCSD Board of Directors. 

1.5 Any Standing Committee, or its ad hoc subcommittees, may meet with staff and/or District consultants but shall 

not interfere with their operational duties, as determined by the General Manager. Any information requests to staff 

will be specific in nature and relate to the business   of the committee. 

1.6 Standing Committee Statements of Purpose and Responsibilities 

1.6.1 The Finance Committee shall: 

(a) Provide review for transparent budget processes and financial management that promote fiscal

stability and instill public trust;

(b) Support and work directly with the CCSD General Manager and Finance Manager in enhancing

financial integrity and monetary discipline;

(c) Discuss and receive public input during committee meetings and advise the Board of Directors on

financial matters;

(d) Provide financial review, assessment, and recommendation to CCSD Board of Directors

regarding potential funding sources available to the District from private, public, County, State or

federal entities;

(e) Support other standing committees’ fiscal review needs.

1.6.2  The Resources and Infrastructure Committee shall: 

(a) Assess existing resources and gather information regarding infrastructure and resource needs of

the community;

(b) Support and work directly with the CCSD General Manager, District Engineer and/or Utilities Manager

in identifying/defining plans to meet the infrastructure needs of the community, working within the

bounds of current and potential resources and priorities of the District;

(c) Provide recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding actions to meet the community’s

infrastructure needs

(d) Support other standing committees’ resource and infrastructure review needs.

2A3



  Board Approved on 5/11/2023                                           
1.6.3 The Policy Committee shall: 

(a)    Review existing operational and governance policies that the Board has identified as requiring 
assessment, update, or organization for consistency with other existing policies; Identify potential areas of 
policy needs not currently addressed in the CCSD Policy Handbook and develop needs assessments 
regarding impact due to lack of policy and immediacy of need. The Committee Chair shall provide the 
needs assessments to the Board members for consideration. If the Board determines that a policy is 
required, the Board shall proceed according to the existing Policy No. 1000 (“Adoption/Amendment of 
Policies”) and (for policies to be included in the District Policy Handbook) the “Policy Handbook Checklist” 
adopted on November 10, 2022; 

(b)   Support other standing committees’ policy review needs. 

 
2. COMMITTEE MEMBERS 

 

2.1 The Committee shall consist of five volunteer members from the community and one CCSD Board  

   Director to act as chairperson. 

2.2 Each Committee member must live and be registered to vote within the CCSD boundaries. 

2.3 Method of appointment: 
(a) The Chairperson shall be chosen annually from members of the Board of Directors by majority 

vote of the Board. 

(b) Volunteer committee members shall serve two-year terms. Such terms shall begin in February of 

odd numbered years. 

(c) At the end of a term of office a committee member wishing to continue for another term shall fill 

out an application as specified in 2.3.(d) below and will be considered for appointment along with 

the other applicants. 

(d) Prior to the beginning of a term, or in the event of a vacancy during an unexpired term, the CCSD 

shall invite applications for committee membership. Such invitation shall be advertised for a 

minimum of two weeks in the local newspaper, on the CCSD website and at all Cambria CSD public 

information bulletin boards. Application forms may be obtained and submitted to the website or the 

Administrative Offices during normal business hours during the application period. 

(e) Any applications received per 2.3.(d) above shall be retained by the District and  remain active for 

two years. 

(f) Committee members shall be appointed from the pool of applicants (see 2.3.(d) above) by 

recommendation of the Committee Chairperson and a majority vote of CCSD Board of Directors. 

(g) The Committee Chairperson shall be responsible for interviewing new applicants and determining 

their qualifications prior to making a recommendation to the CCSD Board of Directors. 

2.4         Committee members shall attend all regular and special meetings of the Committee unless excused for  

    emergencies or other good cause:  

(a) Good cause for absence includes circumstances of which the Chairperson of the Committee is notified prior 

to the meeting. Good cause also includes Board-authorized or Committee-authorized meeting absences such 

as attendance at a conference directly related to the functions and interests of the District or at the meeting of 

another public agency in order to participate in an official capacity.  

(b) A Committee member who is absent for good cause may notify the Chairperson by electronic transmission 

(e.g., email), telephone communication, or letter. The minutes shall indicate whether an absence was excused.  

(c) A vacancy shall occur if a Committee member is absent from three (3) consecutive regular meetings without 

good cause, except as otherwise provided for by law or as authorized by the Board of Directors. 

2.5.    Vacancies of unexpired terms of office of regular Committee members shall be filled by recommendation  
of the Committee Chairperson from the pool of applicants (see 2.3.(d) above) and appointment by the 
CCSD Board of Directors. 

 

 

2A4



  Board Approved on 5/11/2023                                           
 

3. COMMITTEE OFFICERS 
 

3.1. The Chairperson shall be chosen annually from members of the Board of Directors by majority vote of the 

Board 

3.2. The Vice-Chairperson and Secretary shall be chosen annually by a majority of the  Committee. 

3.3. No member of the committee shall hold more than one office. 

3.4. Chairperson duties: 

(a) Vote only in the event of a tie vote, 

(b) Preside over meetings, 

(c) Establish committee meeting agendas, 

(d) Appoint appropriate ad hoc committees, 

(e) Sign reports, 

(f) Represent the Committee at regular CCSD Board meetings, 

(g) Coordinate with CCSD staff input for agenda preparation for the monthly Committee meetings, 

3.5. Vice Chairperson duties: 

(a) Perform the duties of the Chairperson in their absence, 

(b) Act as liaison to another Standing Committee as determined by the Chairperson or a majority of the 

Committee. 

3.6. Secretary duties: 

(a) Record the minutes of the meetings in action form, ensuring the accuracy of when, how and by whom 

the Committee’s business was conducted. 

(b) Submit the draft written minutes and recording to CCSD staff for the public record. 

(c) Minutes should include at a minimum: 

• The date, time and location of the meeting, 

• A list of the Committee members present and absent, 

• A record of reports presented and by whom, 

• The text of motions adopted along with a count of yes and no votes and the committee members 
dissenting, 

• List of items considered for future agenda, 

• Time of meeting adjournment. 

4. COMMITTEE MEMBER GUIDELINES  

4.1. Members of the Committee and their activities are bound by all applicable provision of the Brown Act 

(Government Code Sections 54950, et seq.). 

4.2. Members of the Committee shall not participate in discussion of, or vote on issues constituting conflicts of 

interest – “no public official shall make, participate in making, or in any attempt to use his official position to 

influence a governmental decision in which he/she knows or has reason to know he/she has a financial 

interest.” (Government Code Section 87100). 

4.3. Members of the Committee are charged with protecting and upholding the public interest and exhibiting the 

highest level of ethics. 

4.4. Committee members shall at all times conduct themselves with courtesy towards each other, to staff and to 

members of the audience present at Committee meetings. Should a Committee member disrupt Committee 

meetings or participate in behavior  contrary to the charges and responsibilities of the Committee, the 

Committee, by a majority vote, may recommend action to the CCSD Board. 

 

5. AGENDA PROCEDURE 

 

5.1. Members shall provide input on the agenda to the Chairperson. 

2A5



  Board Approved on 5/11/2023                                           
5.2. The Chair shall develop the draft agenda with input from the Vice Chair and CCSD staff. 

5.3. CCSD staff shall prepare the final agenda and attachments. 

5.4. CCSD staff shall post agendas at the District Administrative Office and be distributed to all Committee 

members and to the agenda distribution list. 

 
6. MEETINGS 

 

6.1. The Committee shall meet within the jurisdictional boundaries of the CCSD, except as otherwise 

permitted by the Brown Act. 

6.2. Information that is exchanged before meetings shall be distributed through the Board Secretary, and Committee 

members will receive all information being distributed as part of the meeting Agenda. 

6.3. The Committee shall hold regular meetings as often as once a month and at least quarterly, on dates set 

annually by the Committee. The Committee may call special meetings as needed, with required 24-hour public 

notice. 

6.4. A majority of all Committee members, including the Chairperson, shall constitute a quorum. 

6.5. The business at regular meetings of the Committee, shall be conducted for no more than a two-hour period, 

unless extended by a four-fifths vote of the Committee. In the event there are remaining items on the agenda at 

the end of the two-hour period, the Committee may adjourn the meeting to a specific date and time in 

accordance with the provisions of Government Code Section 54955. The intent and purpose of this policy is to 

encourage a reasonable time period in which the Committee’s business is discussed and to protect against 

fatigue in discussing and deciding important issues. 

6.6. The CCSD General Manager may determine a staff liaison to the Committee if needed for the purpose 

of facilitating communication. 

7. PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY 

7.1. The rules contained in the current edition of Rosenberg’s Rules of Order (and Robert’s Rules of Order 12th 

Edition for matters on which Rosenberg is silent), shall govern the Committee in all cases to which they are 

applicable and in which they are not inconsistent with these bylaws, any special rules of order the Committee 

may adopt and statutes applicable to the Committee that do not authorize the provision of these laws to take 

precedence. 

8. AMENDMENTS TO BYLAWS 

8.1. These standing committee bylaws shall be reviewed annually at the first regular Board of Directors meeting in 

January after which the amendments may be considered for adoption by the Board. 

8.2. The CCSD Board of Directors retains sole authority to amend these bylaws. Any amendments must be 

approved by a majority of the CCSD Board of Directors. 

 
 
 

2A6



2023-2024 Annual Water 

Shortage Assessment 

Cambria Community 

Services District 

Final Draft | June 12, 2023 

2B7



P a g e  | 2 

Introduction ............................................................................................. 3

Definitions & Acronyms ............................................................................ 4

Annual Water Supply and Demand Assessment ........................................ 5

CCSD Water Supply Portfolio ............................................................. 5

Current Year Unconstrained Customer Demand ................................ 7

Current Year Potable Water Supplies ................................................ 9

Water Shortage Evaluation Criteria ................................................. 13

Supply and Demand Analysis .......................................................... 17

CONTENTS 

2B8



P a g e  | 3 

1 https://www.cambriacsd.org/water-shortage-contingency-plan 

Introduction 

This report presents findings from the Cambria Community Services District’s (CCSD) 
2023-2024 Annual Water Supply and Demand Assessment (AWSDA). It describes the key 
data inputs, evaluation criteria, and methodology for addressing the CCSD’s water system 
reliability for the coming year and the steps to formally declare any water shortage levels 
and response actions. 

Beginning in 2022, the California Water Code Section 10632.1 requires urban water 
suppliers to conduct an AWSDA and submit an annual water shortage assessment report 
to the Department of Water Resources (DWR) on or before July 1 of each year. 

The AWSDA serves as a tool to help identify potential water supply shortages and to 
implement water shortage response actions to mitigate possible supply gaps. The CCSD’s 
Water Shortage Contingency Plan (WSCP)1 includes six stages of water shortage, each with 
its own set of shortage response actions. Each stage aims to achieve a percentage 
reduction in customer demands, as illustrated in Figure A. 

Figure A - 2020 Water Shortage Contingency Plan Stages 

0-10%
• Stage 1 - Water Use Efficiency is a Way of Life

11-20%
• Stage 2 - Water Shortage Watch

21-30%
• Stage 3 - Water Shortage Warning

31-40%
• Stage 4 - Water Shortage Emergency

41-50%
• Stage 5 - Extreme Water Shortage Emergency

>50%
• Stage 6 - Exceptional Water Shortage Emergency

2B9



P a g e  | 4 

Annual Assessment – Annual Water Supply and Demand Assessment to be conducted 

by urban water suppliers every year as required by California Water Code Section 

10632(a). 

Annual Shortage Report – Annual Water Shortage Assessment Report to be submitted 

annually by urban water suppliers on or before July 1 as required by California Water 

Code Section 10632.1. The Annual Shortage Report consists of information including 

anticipated shortages and triggered shortage response actions determined as a result 

of the Annual Assessment. 

Current Year – For the purpose of this Annual Shortage Report, the Current Year is 

defined as the twelve-month period from July 1, 2022, through June 30, 2023. 

CWC – California Water Code 

Demand Reduction Actions – Measures taken to reduce water demand including 

outreach and education actions to promote voluntary reductions and water use 

restrictions. A Demand Reduction Action is considered a Water Shortage Response 

Action. 

DWR – Department of Water Resources in the California Natural Resources Agency 

Next Year – For the purpose of this Annual Water Shortage Report, the Next Year is 

defined as the twelve-month period starting on July 1, 2023 and ending on June 30, 

2024. 

UWMP – Urban Water Management Plan 

Urban Retail Water Supplier – A water supplier, either publicly or privately owned, 

that directly provides potable municipal water to more than 3,000 end users or that 

supplies more than 3,000 acre-feet of potable water annually at retail for municipal 

purposes. 

Water Shortage Response Actions – A measure taken to reduce the gap between 

available water supplies and unconstrained demand and includes demand reduction 

actions, supply augmentation actions, operational changes, mandatory prohibitions, 

and other actions. 

WSCP – Water Shortage Contingency Plan 

Definitions & Acronyms

2B10

lreedall
Highlight



P a g e  | 5 

CCSD Water Supply Portfolio 

The CCSD’s water supply portfolio consists of groundwater from two coastal aquifers, 
the San Simeon and Santa Rosa aquifers. The California Department of Water 
Resources (DWR) Bulletin No. 118 identifies these two sources as the San Simeon and 
Santa Rosa groundwater basins, numbers 3-35 and 3-36, respectively. Appendix E of 
the CCSD 2020 Urban Water Management Plan2 (UWMP) contains the Bulletin 118 
summary description of each of these aquifers, neither of which is listed as being in 
overdraft status by the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB). The basins are 
recharged primarily by underflow from the San Simeon and Santa Rosa Creeks. A map 
of the San Simeon and Santa Rosa aquifers is shown in Figure B. 

Figure B - Map of San Simeon and Santa Rosa Aquifers 

2 https://www.cambriacsd.org/urban-water-management-plan 

Annual Water Supply and 

Demand Assessment 

2B11



P a g e  | 6 

The CCSD relies on 5 production wells: Well SS1, Well SS2, and Well SS3, in the San 

Simeon aquifer and Well SR3 and Well SR4 in the Santa Rosa aquifer. CCSD also uses 

Wells WBE, WBW, SS4, and 9P2 for monitoring the aquifer levels.  

The CCSD also owns and operates the Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) which extracts 

water from below the CCSD’s wastewater percolation ponds, treats it to an advanced 

degree, and then reinjects it back into the groundwater aquifer about 1700-linear feet 

north of the WRF and west of the CCSD’s San Simeon well field. WRF injection serves to 

protect the hydraulic gradient separating the freshwater well field from the 

downstream wastewater percolation ponds and seawater from the Pacific Ocean. It 

also increases available production volume, with approximately 60% of injected water 

eventually migrating to the San Simeon Well Field.  

The WRF is currently operated under an emergency permit from the County of San Luis 

Obispo which limits operation to Extreme and Exceptional Water Shortage 

Emergencies (Stages 5 and 6, respectively) of the WSCP.  

Supply Constraints 

The CCSD’s water extractions are licensed by the SWRCB. The SWRCB license for San 

Simeon Creek allows a maximum of 799 AFY annually from the San Simeon aquifer, 

while limiting dry season pumping to 370 AFY maximum from the time that the creek 

ceases flow at the Palmer Flats gauging station, until October 31. The Santa Rosa Creek 

license limits the Santa Rosa aquifer pumping to 218 AFY annually, with a dry season 

pumping limit of 155.3 AFY from May 1 to October 31. This amount of water is not 

necessarily available every year due to the nature of the two creek aquifers.  

The San Simeon and Santa Rosa aquifers are relatively shallow and porous, with the 

groundwater levels typically recharged every year during the wet or rainy season. With 

CCSD and other pumping, as well as natural outflow to the ocean, groundwater levels 

generally exhibit a characteristic pattern of consistent high levels during the wet 

season, steady decline during the dry season, and rise when the wet season resumes. 

2B12



P a g e  | 7 

During the wet season, the aquifers are continuously recharged via surface water flow 

from San Simeon and Santa Rosa Creeks. However, when the dry season begins, 

recharge is reduced or eliminated and the amount of water in storage in the aquifer 

and groundwater levels decline. At the point recharge from surface water ceases, there 

is a limited or finite amount of water available within the aquifers to support 

municipal, agricultural, and environmental needs until it refills during the next wet 

season. 

Besides the physical characteristics of the aquifers, there are key permitting conditions 

that affect how the CCSD operates its well fields. In addition to the wet and dry season 

production limits mentioned above, CCSD staff carefully monitors groundwater levels 

and the gradient between the percolated mound of treated wastewater at the 

percolation ponds and the upgradient potable wells (see Water Shortage Evaluation 

Criteria).  

Current Year Unconstrained Customer Demand 

Table 1 shows the breakdown of projected demands by customer category for the next 

year (July 2023-June 2024). This assessment used an average of the 2019, 2021 and 

2022 reporting years of data to arrive at the projected potable water demands. During 

2019 and 2021 period, the CCSD remained in a Stage 2 Water Shortage Condition 

under the legacy Emergency Water Conservation Program. While the Stage 2 Water 

Shortage Condition was technically in effect from July 2018 through June 2021, 

demand reduction measures were not enforced by resolution of the Board. Therefore, 

it is assumed that demand was not noticeably constrained by the Stage 2 declaration. 

In the summer of 2022, a Stage 2 or 3 Water Shortage Condition was in effect, 

however, the lack of conservation achieved in those months allows them to be 

considered unconstrained demand.

2B13



Table 1. Water Demand Projections (DWR Table 2)

These projections are consistent with those generated by the CCSD’s Decision System Support (DSS) Model3 when 2019, 

2021, and 2022 base years are utilized. Staff’s analysis included the following assumptions derived from utility billing data:

3 ©Maddaus Water Management; utilized for demand projections in the 2020 UWMP 

P a g e | 8 
2B14



P a g e  | 9 

Population 

The 2020 Census and 2020 American Communities Surveys both represent a dwindling 

population for the Cambria Census Designated Place (Cambria CDP); however, staff 

analysis of utility billing data does not align with Census data. According to the 2020 

Census, Cambria CDP has a population of 5,678 with a total of 4,046 housing units and 

an occupancy rate of just 67%. However, an analysis of 2022 CCSD utility billing data 

reflects an 80.5% occupancy rate with only 2.5% of residential accounts reporting true 

zero consumption (i.e. vacant). Approximately 17% of utility billing accounts register 

usage on a part-time basis.  CCSD staff attributes the bulk of the variance between 

Census and billing data to the high percentage of part-

time and full-time vacation rentals along with a large 

stock of second homes, both of which the Census 

designates as vacant properties. 

Current Year Potable Water Supplies 

Defining a Dry Year  

The CCSD’s 2020 UWMP uses the base year of 2014 for 

the single-dry year in its water supply reliability 

assessment. During 2014, the CCSD was only able to 

pump 64% of its average supply volume. The dry year 

of 2014 was preceded by a wet season of abnormally 

low precipitation, recording about 7 inches at the 

Santa Rosa at Main rain gauge in Cambria and 12 

• Vacation rental water use is equivalent to that of a single-family residence

• 17% of residential accounts are occupied part-time

• 2.5% of residential accounts are vacant

Guidance from the 

Department of 

Water Resources 

CWC section 10632(a)(2)(B) 

requires that all urban water 

suppliers evaluate supply 

reliability for the current year and 

one dry year. Per the State’s 

Annual Water Supply and Demand 

Assessment Guidance, “For the 

Dry Year, the water supplies 

should be adjusted for assumed 

dry-year conditions, which may 

affect availability of local surface 

and ground waters as well as 

imported supplies.” 

2B15



P a g e  | 10 

inches at the Rocky Butte rain gauge in San Simeon4. The current 2022-2023 water year 

resulted in double the average precipitation, with approximately 44 inches recorded at 

the Santa Rosa at Main gauge and 98 inches recorded at the Rocky Butte station. A 

comparison of rainfall data is included in Table 2. 

Table 2. Rainfall Data from Local Rain Gauges for the 2013-14, 2021-22, 2017-2018 water years 

Due to the very different amounts of precipitation received in the current year versus the 

historical single-dry year, this assessment relied on actual pumping volumes from 2017-

2018 for single-dry year supply projections. The 2017-2018 supply was impacted by a 

preceding three-year period consisting of two years with below-average precipitation 

(65-90 percent of average) and an abnormally wet water year with precipitation levels 

similar to the current year.  This three-year cycle closely mimics the past three water 

years: two dry years followed by an extremely wet year and this pattern is why the 

2017-2018 water year’s below-average precipitation is a reasonable assumption for the 

single-dry year. 

In comparison, the 2015 dry season was 233 days long with Palmer Flats flow stopping 

on May 17, 2015, and resuming January 6, 2016. The 2022 dry year was 195 days long 

with flow stopping on May 22, 2022 and resuming December 3, 2022. This year, Palmer 

Flats is predicted to cease flow in early September. The dry season for 2017-2018 was 

134 days long, a short dry season comparatively. However, with the expected late 

cease-flow date for Palmer Flats this year in early September, even without rain until 

January 2024, a shorter dry season (120 to 150 days) is a reasonable assumption. 

4 Source: San Luis Obispo County Public Works. Accessed May 2022. https://wr.slocountywater.org/ 

2013-14 
Percent of 
Average 2022-23 

Percent of 
Average 2017-18 

Percent of 
Average 

Santa Rosa at Main 7.01” 37% 44.32” 223% 15.0” 73% 

Rocky Butte 11.85” 30% 97.76” 251% 30.0” 70% 

2B16



P a g e  | 11 

While it may seem unreasonable to assume that a pumping regime like that of 2017-

2018 will be suitable for 2023-2024, given the vastly different levels of precipitation dry 

season conditions and demands, the purpose of this assessment is to plan and be 

prepared for an abnormally dry year ahead. For the Cambria area, this would mean late 

or inadequate wet season precipitation and incomplete aquifer recharge for the 2023-

2024 water year. Under this scenario, dry season demand management will be 

necessary to ensure adequate supply through the fall and winter and well into the 

spring of 2024. 

Table 3 projects the total available groundwater supplies for the Next Year beginning 

July 1, 2023.

2B17



 Table 3. Water Supplies (DWR Table 3)

Infrastructure Capabilities and Plausible Constraints 

If the water year of 2023-2024 fails to provide full aquifer recharge, operation of the CCSD’s WRF under the existing 

emergency use permit would be required to support dry season pumping in 2024. The impacts of and required response to 

such a scenario would be analyzed in the 2024-2025 AWSDA.  

A break on the transmission water main that supplies water from the San Simeon Well Field (SSWF) to the town of Cambria 

occurred on December 23, 2021. An emergency bypass pipeline was installed, and the original transmission main was 

abandoned in place. While the SSWF was out of service, the community of Cambria relied solely on the Santa Rosa Well 

Field (SRWF) for potable water supply. Mandatory conservation was still in effect from the 2021 dry season, so supply 

P a g e | 12
2B18

lreedall
Highlight



P a g e  | 13 

capacity for the community was not severely impacted. Depending on the scope and 

duration of the permanent replacement project, future supplies may be impacted 

during project activities. That project is not anticipated to occur during the reporting 

period for this assessment. 

The CCSD has redundancy in water sources with a total of five (5) wells in two (2) 

separate aquifers. If one well or aquifer or the transmission infrastructure were to 

experience problems, it could be taken off-line without disruptions to immediate 

supply while the problem is remedied, as happened during the SSWF transmission 

main failure noted above. In addition, all critical water infrastructure is equipped with 

backup generators to allow the system to provide an uninterrupted supply of water 

during electrical power outages. 

Other plausible constraints include additional restrictions on pumping protocols and 

basin management which may be imposed upon the CCSD by natural resource 

agencies, including the California Coastal Commission (Coastal). CCSD is subject to the 

terms and conditions of Coastal Development Permit 132-18 (as amended by Permit 

482-10), which include reserving 20% of the permitted water production capacity for

public commercial or recreational use, and utilizing the SRWF as a supplemental source

of supply during years when the full yield at the SSWF cannot be safely removed.

Recent regulatory actions by the Commission suggest a difference in interpretation of

certain permit conditions. It is unclear what supply impact may result from the

resolution of this matter.

Water Shortage Evaluation Criteria 

• Dry Season Start Date

o Santa Rosa: May 1, per the CCSD’s water license issued by the State Water

Resources Control Board. The maximum amount allowed to be diverted

from the Santa Rosa Creek aquifer during the dry season is 155.3 acre-

feet.

2B19



P a g e  | 14 

o San Simeon: The date of surface flow cessation at Palmer Flats, per the

CCSD’s water license issued by the State Water Resources Control Board.

The maximum amount allowed to be diverted from the San Simeon Creek

aquifer during the dry season is 370 acre-feet.

• Rainfall totals

o Rainfall data will be obtained from the County of San Luis Obispo’s Public

Works Department. The two gauges associated with the CCSD service area

are Rocky Butte and Santa Rosa at Main. Data from both gauges will be

analyzed for the assessment.

• Groundwater levels

o Groundwater levels are measured at a total of 31 well sites each month,

but the critical well sites for the purpose of this assessment include the

San Simeon Well Field production wells (SS1, SS2 and SS3), Santa Rosa

Well 4 (SR4), and the Windsor Bridge monitoring wells (WBE and WBW).

When the water level at the Windsor Bridge wells falls below 3.0 feet

above mean sea level, the CCSD must cease diversions from the Santa

Rosa wells.

• 9P2/SS4 gradient

o The 9P2/SS4 gradient (Gradient) is measured twice per month and

represents the difference in groundwater elevation between monitoring

wells 9P2, located at the CCSD wastewater percolation ponds, and

monitoring well SS4, located just south-west of the San Simeon Well Field.

A positive gradient means groundwater elevation at the San Simeon Well

Field is higher than groundwater levels at the percolation ponds.

Conversely, a negative gradient indicates that groundwater levels at the

percolation ponds are higher than at the well field, which could result in

migration of impaired water from the percolation ponds and saltwater

lagoon towards the freshwater aquifer beneath the well field. When the

9P2/SS4 gradient falls to -0.9 for more than three months during the dry

2B20



P a g e  | 15 

season, operation of the percolation ponds for wastewater disposal must 

cease.  

Status of Water Shortage Evaluation Criteria 

Table 4 depicts the locally applicable water shortage evaluation criteria as a percent of 

normal as of April 1st. April 1st was chosen as a meaningful point-in-time for this 

evaluation because 90% of precipitation is typically received by this date. Except for 

the impacts of basin management (i.e. supplementing San Simeon production with 

Santa Rosa production), none of these criteria are anticipated to improve after April 1st 

until the commencement of seasonal precipitation in the following water year. 

Table 4. Averages as of April 1 Using 2000-2023 Data  
% of Average WBE WBW SR4 Gradient Average SS Wells 

100% 5.73 5.51 53.42 2.57 20.80 

91% 5.21 5.01 48.62 2.34 18.93 

90% 5.16 4.96 48.08 2.31 18.72 

81% 4.64 4.46 43.27 2.08 16.85 

80% 4.58 4.41 42.74 2.06 16.64 

71% 4.07 3.91 37.93 1.82 14.77 

70% 4.01 3.86 37.40 1.80 14.56 

61% 3.49 3.36 32.59 1.57 12.69 

60% 3.44 3.30 32.05 1.54 12.48 

As of April 1, 2023, observed measurements of the above criteria were as follows: 

All recent production has come from the SSWF. Implementing responsible dry-season 

supplementation with SRWF production should help lessen the decline in San Simeon 

well levels as the dry season progresses, prolonging the use of the SSWF into the late 

- WBE: 4.69

- WBW: 4.38

- SR4: 57.00

- 9P2/SS4 Gradient: 2.40

- SSWF Average Well Level: 33.28

2B21



P a g e  | 16 

summer months without resulting in dramatic decreases in groundwater levels and the 

need for increased conservation. 

2B22



Supply and Demand Analysis 

Table 5 presents the projected supply surplus or shortage with and without WSCP actions for each month of the reporting 

period. The actual surplus or shortage for wet season months (October – April) will vary depending on the amount and 

timing of seasonal precipitation. To adequately prepare for insufficient precipitation, demand management must be 

implemented during the dry season to ensure supply reliability for the following wet season. This table will be updated 

monthly and included in the Utilities Report for the Board’s review, as the actual benefits from demand reduction are 

known and recorded. 

Table 5. Potable Water Shortage Assessment (DWR Table 4)

Rather than targeting the minimum amount required to compensate for an anticipated shortage (i.e., 10% in September ), 

staff will call for the full 20% reduction in demand. This conservative approach will provide an added buffer to protect fall 

and winter supplies in a scenario of incomplete aquifer recharge.

P a g e | 17
2B23

lreedall
Highlight



P a g e  | 18 

Thus, the projected recommended actions are implementing a Stage 2 Water Shortage 

Watch Condition starting in September which will achieve the desired demand 

reduction benefits, averaging at least 9% per month throughout the remaining dry 

season, but with a target of 20% per month. Currently, CCSD customers are voluntarily 

conserving an average of 8% per month under a Stage 1 condition5. 

Planned Shortage Response Actions 

Table 6 includes the planned shortage response actions determined to be necessary to 

achieve the required reduction in demand. They are consistent with those outlined in 

the WSCP with the following exceptions: 

• Water Use Efficiency Walk Throughs (surveys) are currently offered at no cost to

all customers starting in Stage 2 Water Shortage conditions.

• Staff recommends that the Board of Directors consider increasing water waste

patrols at all stages.

• Staff recommends that the Board of Directors consider providing high-efficiency

plumbing and landscape irrigation system rebates and giveaways during Stage 2

and higher declarations, budget permitting.

• Staff recommends that the Board of Directors consider prohibiting the refilling of

water cisterns with potable water from CCSD supplies during Stage 2.

Successful demand management requires effective public outreach and 

communication, adequate financial and staffing resources, and the flexibility to 

respond to customer needs and concerns as they arise. Exceptions to any of the 

planned shortage response actions may be authorized in accordance with Section 

4.12.150 of the CCSD municipal code.  

5 Compared to 2021 demand 

2B24



P a g e  | 19 

Table 6.  Planned Shortage Response Actions (DWR Table 5)

2B25



P a g e  | 20 

Phased Ongoing Reassessments 

Monthly reports as to the effectiveness of the planned water shortage response 

actions and the status of water shortage evaluation criteria shall be provided to the 

Board of Directors as part of the General Manager’s or Utilities’ Report. Reassessments 

will be active and iterative as conditions change throughout the dry season.  Changes 

to the recommended water shortage response actions may be required to affect the 

desired reduction in demand. 

GUIDANCE FROM THE DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES 

The actual water supply conditions will depend not only on the replenishment of 

water supplies through inflows from precipitation, but also depend on the 

effectiveness of any current or recent-past water shortage response actions taken 

within the Supplier’s service area. 

Adjust water 
shortage response 
actions based on 
actual conditions

Estimate Next 
Year's (assumed 
dry) supply and 
demand 
conditions

Prepare and 
submit a shortage 

assessment for 
next 12 months

Ongoing 
reassessments of 
water supply and 

demand for 
current 12 months

Figure C - Dynamic Approach to Water Supply and Demand Assessment

2B26


	Meeting Agenda



